
 
STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 

INTER-DEPARTMENT COMMUNICATION 
  

 DATE: April 15, 2024 
 
FROM: Andrew O’Sullivan  AT (OFFICE):    Department of 
 Wetlands Program Manager  Transportation 
 

SUBJECT: Request for More Information  Bureau of 
 Follow-up Information  Environment 
 Plaistow-Kingston 10044E   
  NHDES File Number: 2023-00958 
 
TO:    Karl Benedict, Public Works Permitting Officer 
          New Hampshire Wetlands Bureau 

29 Hazen Drive, P.O. Box 95 
Concord, NH 03302-0095 
 

 
On July 19, 2023, NHDOT submitted a response to a Request for More Information (RFMI) 
received from the New Hampshire Department of Environmental Services (NHDES) Wetlands 
Bureau for the above-referenced Standard Dredge and Fill Wetlands Permit Application 
(Application). An email received from NHDES on August 15, 2023, indicated that the following two 
outstanding issues need to be resolved before the permit can be issued. 
 

1. The NHDES RFMI question #2 had requested that follow-up coordination be performed 
with the mitigation program, ACOE, and EPA to ensure that the mitigation performed under 
the 2004 project, meets the current mitigation requirements for permitting this project. The 
RFMI response referenced a 2020 Natural Resource Agency discussion relative to the 
2004 mitigation that was performed, however the additional requested coordination with the 
mitigation program, ACOE, and EPA was not completed. The coordination for project 
mitigation will need to be completed prior to NHDES decision for the project. 
 
Response: Additional coordination with the NHDES mitigation program, ACOE, and EPA 
occurred to confirm that the mitigation from the 2004 project meets the current mitigation 
requirements for this project. Please find attachments that detail the coordination that has 
taken place since August 15, 2023 and detailing prior mitigation performed under the 
2004project, which NHDOT concludes meet the current mitigation requirements for 
permitting this project. Should NHDES feel the attached supporting submissions that were 
previously submitted to NHDES, ACOE and EPA over the last 8 months are not sufficient 
for documenting that the 2004 project mitigation meets the current mitigation requirements 
for this project, NHDOT request a formal determination from NHDES with an explanation as 
to why the mitigation is not being accepted and provide NHDOT with the associated 
proposed ARM fund payment for the specific locations and impacts not being considered 
eligible by NHDES. 

 
2. Additionally, there are wetland impacts proposed (to wetland areas (F, G, H, I, E) that are 

associated with stormwater management. For equivalency with AoT permitting 
requirements Env-Wq 1503.19 Criteria for Issuance of AOT Permits requires the 
department shall not issue an AOT permit unless the applicant demonstrates that all of the 
following criteria are met: (e) The project does not use naturally-occurring wetlands to treat 
or detain stormwater runoff from the proposed development, unless a permit that 
specifically allows the impacts has been issued pursuant to RSA 482-A. 

 



The proposed use of the wetland area adjacent to Granite Road/RT 125 does appear to 
use naturally occurring wetlands as a Stormwater wetland. Please identify methods to 
avoid and minimize impacts associated with stormwater treatment within this naturally 
occurring wetland. After avoidance and minimization please quantify total impacts (ie. If the 
wetland is proposed for use for stormwater management, then wetland functions will be 
reduced or eliminated). Please quantify all wetland impacts, and any associated mitigation, 
for remaining impacts to the area after avoidance and minimization have been performed. 

 

Response: Impacts to Wetland 5 (original impact areas E, F, G, H, and I) were reviewed 
relative to stormwater impacts. Although the project would result in three new culverts that 
would discharge to Wetland 5, a negative effect on water quality in the wetland would not 
be anticipated. Existing stormwater runoff that enters Wetland 5 is untreated, while the 
proposed runoff would be treated.  

 

The overall goal of the proposed culvert layout under Kingston/Granite Road is to maintain 
the existing flow patterns. The culvert on the south side of Wetland 5 is the outlet for a 
proposed stormwater treatment BMP. This will discharge treated runoff to Wetland 5. The 
proposed culvert on the north side of Wetland 5 (Sta. 929+50) will drain the small infield 
between Granite Road and the relocated section of Kingston Road and is needed to 
prevent water from ponding in this area. The proposed culvert at Sta. 928 is at a low point 
in the roadway and will convey water that drains along the east side of Kingston Road 
under the road into Wetland 5. The other two culverts (Sta. 926+75 and Sta. 2356) are 
existing culverts that will be replaced. The culvert at Sta. 926+75 is being replaced in its 
current location in order to convey the off-site runoff from the upstream wetland. The outlet 
control structure is proposed to meet AoT pre vs post requirements.  

 

Since Wetland 5 will be substantially reduced by the project and the remaining wetland 
area will receive additional direct stormwater discharges compared to existing conditions, 
the Wetland Plans have been revised to include the entire wetland area as permanently 
impacted. This increases the total amount of permanent wetland and stream impact by 
approximately 6,953 square feet (from 15,413 square feet to 22,366 square feet). The total 
amount of temporary wetland and stream impact is decreased by approximately 517 
square feet (from 1,835 square feet to 1,318 square feet) since the temporary impact within 
Wetland 5 is now included as permanent impact. Revised Wetland Plans, Impact Summary 
Table, and page 5 of the application form are enclosed. 

 

Since the revised permanent impact amount is still under the 1.95 acres allowed under the 
previous permit and mitigation package, it is assumed that no additional mitigation is 
necessary. 

 
If and when this application meets with the approval of the Bureau, please send the permit directly 
to Andrew O’Sullivan, Wetlands Program Manager, Bureau of Environment. 
 
 

AMO:mgl 
 
cc: 

BOE Original 
 
ec:  

Kevin Nyhan, NHDOT (kevin.t.nyhan@dot.nh.gov) 
Matt Lampron, NHDOT (Matthew.D.Lampron@dot.nh.gov)  
Marc Laurin, NHDOT (marc.g.laurin@dot.nh.gov) 
Mike Hicks, ACOE  
Rebecca Martin, NHDOT (Rebecca.A.Martin@dot.nh.gov) 
Darren Blood, GM2 (dblood@gm2inc.com) 
Jennifer Riordan, GM2 (jriordan@gm2inc.com) 
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Brown, Joshua

From: Jean Brochi
Sent: Friday, January 26, 2024 2:21 PM
To: Laurin, Marc
Cc: OSullivan, Andrew
Subject: RE: Plaistow-Kingston, 10044E - Concurrence on Mitigation

EXTERNAL: Do not open attachments or click on links unless you recognize and trust the sender.

Hi Mark and Andrew,  
 
I have not confirmed mitigation on this project as I am coordinating through Corps on a separate timeline than 
state.  
I will expedite my review once I have all of the documentation needed.  
Thanks, Jeannie 
 

From: Laurin, Marc <marc.g.laurin@dot.nh.gov>  
Sent: Wednesday, November 15, 2023 11:28 AM 
To: Brochi, Jean <Brochi.Jean@epa.gov> 
Cc: OSullivan, Andrew <Andrew.M.OSullivan@dot.nh.gov> 
Subject: RE: Plaistow-Kingston, 10044E - Concurrence on Mitigation 
 

 
Jean, 
 
Can you confirm EPA’s concurrence of the miƟgaƟon for this latest Plaistow-Kingston construcƟon contract, as has been 
requested of NHDOT by NHDES in order for them to issue their permit. 
 
Thanks, 
 
Marc 
 

From: Laurin, Marc  
Sent: Wednesday, October 25, 2023 1:43 PM 
To: Jean Brochi <brochi.jean@epa.gov>; Michael Hicks <Michael.C.Hicks@usace.army.mil> 
Cc: OSullivan, Andrew <Andrew.M.OSullivan@dot.nh.gov> 
Subject: Plaistow-Kingston, 10044E - Concurrence on Mitigation 
 
Jean and Mike, 
 
This project entails re-evaluaƟng and updaƟng the design of previously proposed improvements to a 1.7-mile segment 
of the NH Route 125 corridor located in Plaistow and Kingston. The 1.7-mile segment is the only remaining segment that 
has not yet been constructed from a 6-mile project corridor that was previously studied and approved (Plaistow-
Kingston, 10044B). 
 

 Caution: This email originated from outside EPA, please exercise additional caution when deciding whether to open 
attachments or click on provided links.  
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In a response to NHDOT’s submiƩal of the NHDES Wetland Permit applicaƟon for the Plaistow-Kingston, 10044E 
contract, the NHDES has requested that follow-up coordinaƟon be performed with the ACOE, and EPA to ensure that the 
miƟgaƟon performed under the Plaistow-Kingston 10044B project, meets the current miƟgaƟon requirements for 
permiƫng Contract E. 
 
Wetland impacts were previously miƟgated as part of the overall Plaistow-Kingston 10044B project under NHDES 
Wetlands Permit #2004-00763 and US Army Corps Permit NAE-2004-01342. This miƟgaƟon package included 80.8 acres 
of land preservaƟon and restoraƟon of two wetlands. The previous permit and miƟgaƟon package allowed for up to 1.95 
acres of permanent wetland impact under Contract 10044E. With the reduced project footprint (from 5 lanes to 3 lanes), 
wetland impacts were substanƟally reduced. The currently proposed 10044E Contract will have 0.354 acres of 
permanent wetland and bank impacts.  
 
The stream impacts and miƟgaƟon package were more recently discussed with NHDOT Natural Resource Agency 
CoordinaƟon MeeƟngs on November 18, 2020 and March 20, 2019. The previous miƟgaƟon package did not address 
stream impacts since it was developed prior to the NHDES rules that require separate miƟgaƟon for watercourse-related 
impacts. The 10044E contract, as currently proposed, includes approximately 29 linear feet of permanent stream impact 
(5 linear feet of channel impact and 24 linear feet of bank impact to the LiƩle River from culvert extension). 
 
Lori Sommer of NHDES reviewed the previous miƟgaƟon package and determined that it adequately compensates for 
the lost funcƟons that would have been required as miƟgaƟon for the LiƩle River impacts.  As such, it was determined 
that no further miƟgaƟon is necessary for the 10044E project. 
 
Your concurrence that no further miƟgaƟon is necessary for the impacts associated with the 10044E Contract is 
requested. 
 
Let me know if you need further informaƟon. 
 
Thanks, 
 
Marc 
 
 
 
 


